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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Trustees are pleased to present their annual report for the academic year 2023/2024 which was o period of
consolidation with no additional academies joining our Trust during the year.

Operating as ten primary schools across five local authorities with numbers of children from Twos & Nursery to Year 6
over 3,200 supported bu 500 members of staff, Perry Hall Multi-Academy Trust (PHMAT) continues to work In areas of
the West Midiands with high deprivation, with a clear focus on improving cutcomes for our children.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and cn exempt charity,

The charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the
Academy Trust.

The Trustees of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law.

The charitable company operates as Perry Holl Multi Academy Trust.

Detgils of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved and are included in
the Reference cnd administrative deteils on page 1.

b. Members’' ligbility

Fach member of the charitable company underiakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year ofter they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

c. Trustees' indemnities

The Trustees of the Trust have been indemnified in respect of their legal liability for financial loss crising as aresult of
negligent act, accidental error or omission in the course ¢f their official duties.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Method of recruitment ond appointment or election of Trustees

The management of the Academy Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted under the
terms of the Memorandum of Association.

On 12 June 2013 the Perry Hall Primary School Governing Body appointed 3 Members for the newly formed Academy.
Subsequent changes have cccurred to the members. The Members then appointed a number of Trustee Governors.

in accordance with the Articles of Assodiation, the Acadermy's Governing Body comprises the following:
- Up to 5 Governors appointed by the Members

- Up to 3 Governors appointed in accordance with any policy decided by the Governors

- A minimum of 2 Parent Governors

- The Chief Executive Officer

The term of office for any Governor shall be four years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive
Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to be o particular type of Governor, ony Governor may be re-appointad or re-
elected,

when appointing new Governors the Boord will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing Governors
in order to ensure thot the Boord has the necessary skills to cantribute fully to the Acodemy's develooment.

e. Policies ond procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The Trust has an established Governor and Trustee induction process which has been produced in conjunction with the
Trust third party clerking service. The procedure outlines the roles and responsibilities of everyone involved.

Before any Trustee joins the board, they are required to complete a skills audit which will highlight any training needs.
Cnce recruited, the Trustee will enrol onto The Key for formal induction training and with the support from the third
porty will take part in g tailored training programme,
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A compuany limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continved)

f. Organisational structure

The structure of the organisation is summarised as follows:

CEOJEXECUTIVE
TEAM
;
e . S
TEACHING AND CENTRAL TEAM

LEARNING TEAMW

PHMAT Mermbers are responsible for holding Trustees to account. They have ultimate control over the academy trust,
with the abllity to appoint some of the trustees and the right to amend the trust’s Articles of Association. They are the
guardians of the constiiution and meet annugliy.

The Trust Board are responsible for the general control and management of the administration of the Trust in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Articles of Association. They are responsible for the following:

»

Complionce with the Academy Trust Hondbook

Determination of procurement policies

Annual approval of the Trust budget including those of each acodemy
HR policies and procedures including terms and conditions of service.
Appointment of the internal auditor

Appointment, job description, approval and dismissal of the CEQ
Monitoring performance of the CEO

Ratification of all Trust policies and procedures

Determination of the admissions policy and orrangements
Determination of the educational vision of the Trust

Trust Board sub-committees ore as follows:

*

L)

Finance and General Purpose Committee
Paoy Commitiee

Trust Standards Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

Safety, Heolth ond Environment Committee

The CEOQ is the accounting officer and leads the executive leadership team in carrying out the executive management
function of the Trust, focussing on strategy, cperational matters and educational performance and standards.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personne! listed elsewhere within this report comprise members of the Trust central teom in
addition 1o senior leaders based ot each of our academies (generally Headteacher/Head of Schoal).

For the majority, remuneration is bosed on nationclly odopted poy scaoles with performance management

conversations leading to proposals taken to the annual Poy Committee Meeting in July. Ratification of proposals at Pay
Committee lead to adeption of pay grades and points each September or when national pay scales are agreed.

The pay for the Chief Executive Officer involves an external educctional consultant who in conjunction with the Trustees
reviews pay ond remunerction against appropriate criteria and is again ratified ot Pay Committee.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year
Full-time equivaient employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time

0%

1%-50%

51%-99%

00%

Percentage of pay bill spent on focility time
Total cost of facility time

Total pay bill

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid frade union activities as a percentage of total pald facility time hours

Number of
empioyees

17,778,015
- %
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarontee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i, Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust continues to highlight the health and wellbeing of all members of staff as a key objective and that we remain
an employer of choice. Cur employee assistance programme offers 24/7 confidential support i required and other
employee benefits have been promoted in the period such as the provision of health cover, link to external will writing
service, retail and childeare voucher schemes, car leasing schemes, cycle to work and others. These schemes which are
promoted across an annual cycle continue to highlight cur commitment to staff health and wellbeing.

Our 500 employees have been consulted on issues of concern by means of regular consuitative committee and staff
meetings and have been kept informed on specific matiers directly by management.

All staff receive regular email communication from the Central Team in relation to important information and updates.
In addition to this a Trust newsletter is distributed 1o ¢lt stoff generally haif-termiy highlighting successes enjoued in
eqch of our academies.

The Trust central HR resource carries out exit interviews for ail stoff leoving the crgonisation by way of resignation and
hos adopted o procedure of upward feedback to senior leaders where appropriote in individual academies.
Consolidated information including any emerging themes is reported 1o the Trust Board on a termily basis.

. Trust Equality Policy
. School Velunteers' Policy
. Trust Health & Safety Policy

Full details of these policies are ovailoble from the Multi-Academy Trust's offices.

In accordance with the Trust's bquality Policy, the Trust has long-established fair employment practices in the
recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff.

in the event of a staff member joining the Trust who is disobled, appropriate risk assessments are carried out and
suitable measures are applied in the workplace to provide support.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continved)

|- Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust

Given our organisational growth, engogement with key suppliers grows oo, not least as we strive to reduce our number
of vendors and realise synergies from preferred supplier relationships. This is porticularly true of when new
establishments are on-boarded into the Trust.

Official purchose orders are raised centrally from locally submitted purchase order requisitions with weekly BACS runs
{and some day faster payments where necessary) also tronsacted from the shared service centre. Suppliers therefore
communicate directly with the central business team on many delivery and payment gueries.

The number of cur sales customers is limited olthough increased with the latest academy- generally monthly sales
invoices are raised because of lettings or licence to occupy agreements. Any school-to-school support or consuitoncy
provided to other educotional establishments is advised by individual Headteachers or the CEQ for onward recharge.
Communication with these customers is via the central business teom with any outstanding debts or invoice gueries
followed up vio central credit conirol procedures.

Other tronsactions include -but are not limited to -school meals, trips, residential visits, ciubs and extended school
provisions. Given aur drive for becoming totally cashiess, most of these transoctions are hanaled via our Trust software
but if cash payments are made - generally charitoble donations or local club provision - they are handled locally by
school front office administrators and recorded with o full audit trail.

Debt balances are monitored centraily at least monthly with recourse to each academy to reduce the bolance (in full or
via agreed poyment plans).
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims
The vision of PHMAT is to provide outstanding education 1o enable every child to succeed ot all levels,

Through o clear vision which drives strategic direction, we endeavour to be recognised as a Trust thot retains and
grows robust leaders and governance by suitably equipging them to moke substantial improvements ot pace, putting
the children's well-being, safety and education ot the heart of every decision.

By establishing o sustainable framework for continuous improvement and professional growth, we will provide learning
of the highest quality for oll stakeholders, enabling success for everyone.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

During 2023/24, the PHMAT vision statement and values were re-visited, renewed and approved by Trustees. Voives of
personal growth, honesty, respect represent and underpin everything the Trust is centred around. Throughout the year
these values were embedded into every day working practices to support strategic objectives.

During 2023-2024 PHMAT focussed cn five strategic objectives.
1. Personc! growth

2. Honesty

3 Mutugl respect

4, Ambiticn

5 Teamwork

¢. Public benefit
In setting objectives ond planning for activities, the Trustees have given due considerction to general guidance

published by the Charity Commission relating to public benefit, including the guidance ‘Public benefit: running a charity
(PB2Y.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

a. Review of activities

Throughout 2023%-2024, despite facing the challenges of finonciol pressures and changes to the educationel fandscape,
the Trust haos mode good progress in obtoining our mission 1o establish a sustainable framework for continuous
improvement and professional growth and to enable every child to succeed. In addition, the Trust continued to work on
its values as detailed below.

1 To embed the newly established Trust vision statement and values within all Trust schools,

The new vision statement and vaives were launched with all stakeholders ot stoges throughout the year and became
the driving focus when addressing or dealing with Trust-wide developments or changes.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance {continved)

2. To improve the ocutcomes for reading and writing across all schools.
The new DfE reading strategy wos implemented and the provision for reading across all schooels was evaluated by Trust
jeaders to ensure it met the new strategy and the needs of the children.

3, To further-develop the wider curriculum

Ali schools either further-developed their existing curriculum or embarked on ¢ new curriculum. Leaders developed and
impiemented effective assessment systems and monltoring provisions to understand key strengths and areas of
development and to provide training and support where needed. Teaching ond learning team members were deployed
approprictely to support.

4. Enhance the provision for vulnerable children across the Trust to ensure they make progress from starting
points

With the increcsing number of needs across the Trust, o key focus this year has been supporting cur most vulnerable
children, particularly those with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND). Supported by the Trust Passive
intervention ond Prevention Strategies team, leaders clearly identified SEND, pupil premium or LAC children to monitor
provision and impact, with o focus on the youngest children where needs ure increosing. Targeted teaching and
learning support for all teachers ond support staff was put inte place including specialist troining for SENCOs and
schools, as well os tailored support for children and their fomilies.

5. To ensure staff development opportunities enhances knowledge and skills and creates a cuiture that
attracts and retains staff

A training progromme was developed that cultivated staff knowledge and skills, enabling them to deliver a well-
matched curriculum, In order to retain strong stoff and improve retention, strengths and areas of expertise were utilised
to support others. The Teaching ond Learning teom ciong with executive lecders developed ond implemented o
comprehensive troining programme to grow additional lecdership layers, improve the quality of teaching ond learning
for all, develop leadership skills end develop our culture of cooching ond mentoring.

Financial Management

The year has been set against o challenging financial context with increased staff costs (not just from poy owards but
alse from an increased level of supply cover costs for stoff agbsences). This hos been coupled with cost increases
possed on by maony service providers. Recruitment into many roles has also continued to difficult for some
establishments. However, given the challenges presented we have oddressed these with constant review of financial
information, appropriate staffing structures and relationships with key suppliers. Our plans have been adapted
accordingly ensuring we react to future pupil numbers, changing staffing profiles and mitigote expenditure pressures
wherever possible.

The Board of Trustees would once again like to sincerely thank all members of staff across the Trust for thelr dedication
and hard work in supporting our children and their families ogainst these chalienges.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {(continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

MAT Central Business Team

The key functions within the central team supporting our ocademies include Finance, HR, Facilities Management,
Governance, Data Monagement & Procurement.

This provides benefits of stendardisation, improvement in key processes, regorting ond benchmarking.
Other achievements and performance throughout the year are highlighted below:
School Improvement

work has taken place across all establishments, utilising the Trust Teaching and Learning team resources to drive
improvements in the quality of education and outcomes wherever possible. By aligning their approach to each school's
unique School Improvement Plan, the team has delivered o wide range of tailored suppon, including professiono!
development programs, menitering, subject-specific development, and team-teaching initiatives. This method has
enabled the team fo work closely with schools, ensuring they are well-prepared for external evalugtions, such as Ofsted
inspections, while alse aligning with the Trust's overarching priorities. A collaborative process ted by the teaching ond
learning teaim, involving action planning, implementation, and menitering of outcomes has been pivotal in driving school
improvement across the Trust, The team has also worked hard to ensure it is outward facing, coliaboratively working
with and learning from other educctional experts and organisations such os working with The National Tedching
College and the regional Science and computing hubs to develop and pilot and evaluote National subject leaderships
programmes, leading on NPQ programmes, supporting the Trust's Behaviour Hubs activitles,

Staff Development

Building on the successes of previous years, there has been increased training offered to ol internal stoft and
externaliy, which has been received positively. The Teaching and Learning team, along with Trust chompions have also
strangthened learning networks across the Trust. This has reinforced the team’s facus on leadership development at cll
levels supporting continuous schoo! improvement.

Governance

The introduction of o detailed induction process has given new Governors and informative and positive start 1o their
journey. Governor recruitment processes were developed to ensure thot vacancies from o wider audience have been
filled with Governors that are well-equipped ond whose values afigned with those of the Trust. Cur governonce process
and practices have ensured that we remain to be consistent and accountable to our responsibilities. An annual skills
aqudit was undertaken at the start of the academic yeor for each local governing body underpinning the most
appropriate use of rescurce being depioyed on the various sub-committees (Standords primarily of a local level
focussing on educational outcomes).

Community Engagement

The Trust hos enhanced communication, feedback and engagement with children, parents, Governors and staff,
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Feedback obtained has helped inform decisions and understand and meet the needs and expectations of our local

communities,

Recognition

One key achievement was one of our Executive leaders awaorded a bronze Pearson Nationo! Teaching Aword for
Heodteacher in a Primary School. The Pearson National Teaching Awards are held annually to celebrate the impact of
educators across the UK ond to ralse the profiie of the waork that tokes place in education, We are understandably
proud of this gchievement.

These accomplishments demonstrate the Trust's firm dedication to delivering its vision to children, parents, staff,
Governors and communities through its devotion to school improvement, people and governonce, Trustees wouid like
to sincerely thank oll members of staff across the Trust for their dedication and hard work in supporting our children

and their families.

The Trust is proud 1o report some of these key achieverments and events which took piace during the year:

. Major fundraising event in the Summer Term

. Art Exhibition at Wolverhampton Art Gallery displaying gallery from Berrybrook Primary

. 70th Birthday Celebrations for Stedmere Primary

. Achieved recognition from ELSA Awards for supporting the emotional development of our children
. Toking the lead with the Chartered College of Teaching on the Rethinking Curriculum project

. Development of the School of Sanciuary ot Dunstall Hill Primary

Facilities and estotes management
2023/24 sow several large capital expenditure projects undertaken which were funded by our School Capita! Allocation
Grant {SCA), Devolved Formula Copital (OFC) and in some cases (most notably Mesty Croft Primary) Trust reserves.

Key projects are summarised as follows:

School Capitat Projects Cost{Emj
Perry Hall Refurbishment of K81 Classrooms 0.04
Waoodthorne Refurbishment of K81 Hall 0.04
Forest Hills Tarmac to driveway 0.02
Birds Bush Fiooringto atl classrooms 0.03
Stanley Road Fencing to grounds and roofing works 0.04
Mesty Croft Replacement madular classroom / New 0.7
Ceilings and lighting
Sledmere Fire door replacement and auto gates 0.3
Titlington Auto gates tarmac and asbestos works 0.1
Manor

The Trust hos followed the ESFA's “Estates Self Evaluation Tool” and created an Estates Management Plan Policy,
adopted at Trust Boord to incorporate our Asset Management Plan (AMP) is to develop ¢ strategic approach to capital

investment.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the yeor ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continved)

Throughout 2024/25 the Trust will continue to undertake condition audits of each school site, esteblishing the
reguirements for each school ond place them in priority order.

Any schemes that address a heaith and safety concern will automatically be included in the copital programme in line
with the EMP.

During this yeor, we have worked with consultants to ook specifically ot fire alarms and electrics in our schools which
will inform the forthcoming 2025/26 programme.

b. Key performance indicators

The key performance indicotors of our Trust include pupil outcomes, pupil attendance levels, OFSTED ratings and
reports and pupil and parent gquestionnaires. Our HR KPls monitor staff attendance, retention levels and access to
wellbeing services supported by staff questionnaires ond exit interviews.

Our key financial metrics reported as part of our monthiy management accounts reviews highlight costs os
percentages of key variables, movement in cash reserves, costs per pupil amongst others. These KPIs and trends ore
benchmarked internally in addition to external benchmarking comparisons using lotest government stotistics for similar
size establishments.

¢. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of Trustees has o reasonable expectotion thot the Academy Trust hos
cdeguate resources to continue in operotional existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to
cdopt the going concern basis in preparing the finoncial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company fimited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {continved)
Achievements and performance (continued)

d. Promoting the success of the academy trust

The Trustees of the organisation, as those of all UK companies, must act in occordonce with a set of general duties.
These duties are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 which is summarised as follows:

“A trustee of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success
of the company for the benefit of its sharehoiders as a whole and In doing so, have regard to the likely consequences of
any decisions in the long term; the interests of the company’s employees; the need to foster the company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers and others; the impact of the company’s cperations on the community ond
environment; the desirebility of the company maintaining o reputation for high standards of business conduct; and the
need to act foirly as between shareholders and the company”

Details of how our Trustees have fulfilled these duties when dealing with strategic decisions are covered in the Strategic
and Directors’ Reports.

Financial review

At 31 August 2024, the Trust had free reserves of £1,452, 067 (2023 - £2,558,508), fixed asset reserves of £57477447
(2023 - £57.921,657) which can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets, ond o pension reserve in deficit of
£1196,000 (2023 - £1,829,000).

0. Reserves policy

At the time of report preparation, no additional funds have been set aside for future liabilities - other than operationcl
accruals {such as the suppert staff backpay) ond income reserved in for future receipts such as Pupil Premium.

Our reserves policy has been agreed with reserves being ollocated to the school that received the intial funding
streams,

The level of reserves is reviewed throughout the year at appropriate committee meetings with the overall aim to ensure
the continuad operations of the Trust but not 1o hold onte excessive levels of reserves unnecessarily.

Our year-end reserves bolance of £15m aithough reduced from prior year is there to ensure we protect future
cashflow, have adeguate contingency for future events including our growth whilst allowing for planned investment and
site improvement where apprepriate.

Given our future forecasting, this level of reserves is considered sufficient to support the Trust's finoncial objectives in
the medium term.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guorantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

b. Investment policy

Due to the nature ond timing of funding, the Trust may ot times hold cosh balonces surplus to the short term
cperational needs of the schools. The Trustees have authorised the use of short term bank deposit accounts to take
advantage of higher interest rates.

¢. Principol risks and uncertainties

A fult annual review of the Trust risk register was undertaken which comprises of an evaluation of financial, educational,
reputational, compliance, financial and other risks which could impact operations of the Trust ond schocls within it
Termly action plans were produced to address the top risks to the Trust or those which are graded lower and requiring

action.

The top 5 risks identified in our lotest Risk Register are as follows:

. Retention of staff

. Recruitment of suitably skilled and gualified staff to vacancies

. Increase in stoff poy ond on-costs compared to funding

. Recruitment of suitably skilled Governors and Trustees

. Relationship with keu suppliers (for example suppliers of agency stoff )

By octively detecting, managing ond treating these risks, Trustees demonstrate their dedication to uphelding the
highest standards of compliance, standards, maintenance and seofety in mitigating any Identified risks which could
impact operations of the Trust and it’s schools.

d. Fundraising
The Trust, supported by and external company have been successful in identifying opportunities and securing funding

for various projects including the development of forest schools and outdeoor areas, school trips and throughout the
year.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company iimited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

During this financial period, the Trust has consumed more than 40,000 kwh of energy across its nine establishments.
Further details ore reported below.

The Academy Trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2024 2023
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kwh) 2,838,384 3,083111
Energy consumption breakdown (kwh:
Gas 2,030,539 2,244.788
Electricity 753,695 790,437
Other sources 54,150 -
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumption mn 477
Total scope 1 Xl 477
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity 156 168
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 527 645
Intensity ratio:

Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil 0.15% (182

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

The data utllised for the consumption calculations are taken directly from energy inveices for each acodemy covering
the financial period under review. The totals have also been compaored to our latest Dispioy Energy Certificates
monitoring how efficiently our buildings are being used. Conversion facters for eoch of electricity and gos have been
sourced from latest government GHG conversion tables as advised.

Intensity Measurement
The intensity ratio of Tonnes CO2e per pupils utilises total number of puplls attending cur establishments as its diviser
¢S submitted per Autumn census returns. The intensity ratio has reduced by 0.031 year-on year.

Measures Taken to Improve Energy Efficiency

As our latest published Display Energy Certificates report, there is currently o variction in energy performance
operational ratings across the Trust. We continue to engage with an external energy consultant to drive standardised
supply across the Trust and continue to took ot methads of reducing our energy usage. Discussion regarding potential
use of solor panels has just commenced. We continue to work with our external support to mitigate cost increases
where we can as the energy cest londscape continues to change and we have also benefitted from a similar
programme for water supplies.
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Perry Hall Muiti Academy Trust

(A company limited by guorantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Plans for future periods
we remain focussed on improvement and plon te continue to support and partner other schools where we con.

Cur intention is to continue to grow in the future with the addition of appropriate schools which fit the ethos ond values
of our Trust. When future opportunities present themselves, we will explore them with necessary due diligence.

Objectives for the coming year

In addition to financial considerations, there are key objectives to cddress over the coming yeor, not least odapting to
the increase in Special Educational Needs pupils and the continued wellbeing of our children and staff.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
No monies are being held on behalf of other schoois or other orgonisations as at 31 August 2024.
Disciosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are oware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unawore, and
. that Trustees have taken ol steps that they ought to have token to maoke themselves awore of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating o stroategic report, was epproved by order of the Boord of Trustees, os the company
directors, on 25 November 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

|

A Brocklehurst
Chair of Trustees
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Stotement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overa! responsibility for ensuring that Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate systerm of control, financial and otherwise. However, such ¢ system is designed to manage
rather than eliminote the risk of foilure to achieve business objectives, and con provide only reasonable and not
absolute assuronce against moterial misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Hondbook and competency
framework for governance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring finandial centrols conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities ossigned te it in the funding agreement between Perry Hall Multi
Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reperting to the board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal contral.

Governance

The information on governance included hera supplements that described in the Trustees' report ond in the statement
of trustees’ responsibilities. The boord of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year.

Antendance during the year ot meetings of the boord of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
A Brocklehurst, Chair of Trustees 4 4

A K Cheema, Chief Executive Officer and 4 4

Accounting Officer

M Edwards, Vice Chair 3 4

L McCarthy 4 4

D Tarbuck 4 4

A Gibson 3 4

N Robson-Hill 3 4

Governance reviews:

In line with the orgonisational responsibility that financial information should be shared primarily at Trustee level, the
Trust Finance Committee Meetings have continued alongside the seporate Risk and Audit Committee. These meetings
are supplemented with monthly reviews between Chair of Trustees and Chief Finance Officer where consolidated
monthly management accounts information are presented. Discussions ond actions are formally documented and
authorised. Meetings with Heads have also taken place during 2023/24 with o strong focus on staffing structures and
those expenditure categories firmly under school control e.g. Learning Resources,
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

Financial Governaonce
The Finance & General Purposes Committee is a sub commitiee of the main board of Trustees. its purpose is to:

- Monitor, evaluate and review poticy and performance in reletion te financial management
- Ensure compliance with reporting and regularity reguirements
- Draft the annual budget

The Finance and General Purposes Committee meetings are scheduled regularly throughout the year, where the latest
consolidated management accounts information in addition to centrol budgets, re-forecasts and other key financial
documents are discussed.

Attendance during the year of meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings ottended Out of a possible
A Brocklehurst 3 3
A K Cheema 3 3
L MeCarthy 3 3
A Gibson 3 3

The Audit & Risk Committee is ancther sub-committee with o focus primarily on review of the risk register which is
updated regularly with key actions and recommendations as well as operational process reviews and management
responses resulting from our internal audit programme of work.

The Trust continues to employ an internai oudit services provider to review cperational financial procedures and
processes on a termiy basis. Regulor reporting and monitoring is performed based on the findings of this additional
Responsible Officer. The annual programme of work has re commenced several local reviews this year postponed due
to the pandemic (e.g. detailed portable asset checks) in addition to central team process auditing.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings aitended Out of a possible
M Edwards 3 3
D Torbuck 3 3

J Parkes, M Webb and E Dyas were also present at all audit and risk committee meetings.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money

As gccounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that volue for money refers to the educational
and wider societal cutcomes, as well as estates safety ond management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The Accounting Officer of the Trust has ensured that the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during the acodemic year via the following methods:

Financigl Governgnce

The Finance Committee - information presented includes consolidated management accounts information, control
budgets, re-forecasts and key variance analysis.

The Risk & Audit Committee - information presentad includes the risk register, internal qudit findings and other key
documents (e.g. Register of Business Interests)

Chair of Trustees / CFO review - @ monthly col! discussing latest consolidoted management accounts, cash-flow and
balonce sheet information with supporting narrative on variances and proposed courses of action.

Interngl audit services - Responsible Officer reviews operational financial procedures and processes termly from an
agreed annual progromme of work.

Robust Purchasing

The Trust's purchosing procedures are driven by:

- Segregation of duties (tendering, quoting, ordering, inveicing)

- Increased preferred supplier agreements (with review as academies [oin)
- Apnpropriate cuthorisation limits

- Review of service level agreements

Investment

Cash balances are reviewed regularly to ensure that operational cashflow s protected as well as ensuring adequate
cash reserves are avallable for approved cagital investment. During the year the Trust conducted a thorough review of
its estates and started to undertake repalr and enhancement works on schools under a priority programme of works
devised by the estates management and approved by the Board.

Pupil Premium / Sports Premium / Becovery Premium/ National Tutoring Premium

All additional sources of funding have been tracked ond monitored throughout the year ensuring resources are
effectively targeted to make or exceed expected academic process. (The two latter funding streams have now ceased
from September 2024).
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement {continued)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasenable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The sysiem of internal control is based on an on-going process designed 1o identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievernent of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likefihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, end to manage them efficiently, effectively and econcmically. The
systern of internal contrel has been in place in Perry Holl Multi Academy Trust for the year 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 and up to the date of epproval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating,
finencial and complicnce controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of the
view that there is a formal ongeoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significont
risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 ond up to the dote of approval of the
annual report and financiat staternents. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Acodemy Trust's system of internal control is based on o framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation ond accountakbility. In
particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting ond monitering systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the boord of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicote financial performance
ogainst the forecasts and of major purchase plans, copital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (osset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees hos decided to employ 8020 Financial Management as internal auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing o range of checks on
the Academy Trust's financiai and other systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. Leadership and governance
. FPeople management

. Policy and sirategy

. Partnership and resources

. Processes

On o termiy basis, the Internal guditor reports to the board of Trustees through the Audit and Risk commities
committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibllities end
annually prepares on annual summary report to the cornmittee outlining the orea reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conciusions to help the committes consider octions and assess year on year progress.

8020 Financial Management has carried out their schedule of work as planned cnd have not identified any material
control issues.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in guestion the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the work of the exacutive monagers within the Academy Trust who have responsibifity for the development and
maintenance of the interngl control framework.

the work of the external auditor,;

correspondence from ESFA e.g. FNtI/Nt and 'minded to' letters.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the systerm of internal control
by the Audit and Risk committee committee and u plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
that the academy trust has an adequate and effective fromework for governance, risk management and control,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 25 November 2024 and signed on their behalf by

A Brocklehurst A K Cheema
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust
board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
complignce with terms and conditions of oll funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding
cgreement betwaen the Academy Trust ond the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates sofety
and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust boord of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
ol funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-complionce with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding cgreement and the Acadermy Trust Hondbook 2023

| confirm thet no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the beard of Trustees end
ESFA.

AR 1A

A K Cheema
Accounting Officer

Date: 25 November 2024
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Perry Hall Muiti Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
for the year ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees (who are glso the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company low requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of offairs of the charitoble company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expendiiure, for that period. In preparing these finoncial statements, the Trustees ore required to:

. select suitable accounting policies ond then apply them consistently;

. ochserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

) state whether applicoble UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and exploined in the financial stotements;

. prepare the fingncial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate fo presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees ore responsible for keeping adegquate occounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reascnable occuracy ot any time the finoncial position of the
charitable company ond enable them to ensure that the financial statemants comgply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of froud ond other irreguiarities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring thot in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DTE have been appliad for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparction and dissemination of

financial statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 25 November 2624 and signed on its behalf by:

| N

A Brocklehurst
Chair of Trustees
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

{A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the finonciol statements to the Members of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

we have audited the financial statements of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust {the ‘academy trust’) for the year ended 31
August 2024 which comprise the statemnent of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the
reluted notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
appiled in their preparation is applicable low, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Acceptad Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued
bu the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial stotements:

. give a true ond fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as ot 31 August 2024 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properiy prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019

cnd the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 1o 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable low.
Our responsibilities under those standerds are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financiol
Repaorting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordonce with these
requirements. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a besis for
our opinion.

Conclusions refating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the geing concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropricte.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any moterial unceriginties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's abifity to continue as @
going concern for a period of ot least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

independent Auditor's Report on the finoncial statements to the Members of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust
{continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the ennual report other than the financial statements and
our guditor's regort thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other informotion contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the finoncigl stotements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in cur report, we do net express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, Qur responsibility is to read
the other information ond, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or ocur knowledge obtained in the course of the cudit, or otherwise appeoars to be maoterially
misstated. If we identify such meterial inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to o material misstctement in the financial statements themselves. if, based on the work we have
perfarmed, we conclude that there is o material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our opinion, bosed on the work undertaken in the course of the qudit:

. the Information given in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

reguirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Acaodemy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the oudit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strotegic report.

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

. the fingncial staterments are not in agreament with the accounting records ond returns; or

» certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust
(continued)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fuliy In the Statement of Trustees' Respeonsibllities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
Academny Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparction of the financiol statements and
for being sotisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such internal centrol as the Trustees determine Is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financiol statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue
os a going concern, disclosing, as opplicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cencern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
aiternative but to do so.

Auditor's respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain recsoncble assurance about whether the financicl stotements as a whole are free from
matericl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an cuditor's report that inciudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an oudit conducted in accordance with
ISAS (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individugily or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the baosis of these finoncicl statements.

rregularities, including fraud, ore instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in fine
with our responsidilities, outlined above, 1o detect moterial misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which cur procedures ore capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed beiow:

Qur approach to identifying ond ossessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with lows and regulations, was as follow

s the senior stafutory ouditor ensured thot the engogement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable lows and regulations:

« we identified the lows and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other
management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the Academies sector,

s we focused on spacific lows and regulations which we considered may hove o direct material effect on the financicl
statermnents or the cperaticns of the compeny, including the financial reparting legislation, Componies Act 2006,
taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and health and safety legislation

s we assessed the extent of compliance with the lows and regulations identified above through making enguiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

s identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regulariy and the teom remcined clert to
instances of non-complicnce throughout the audit.

Page 27



Perry Hail Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust
(continved)

We assessed the susceptibility of the compony’s financial statements 1o material misstatement, including obtoining an
uvnderstanding of how fraud might occur, by

= mcking enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of
actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and
= considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of froud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

» performed anolytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected refationships;

+ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions,

s ossessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in Note 2
were indicative of potential bias; and

* investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulotions, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to;

*» ggreeing finoncial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

« reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

* enguiring of management as to actual ond potentiol litigation and clgims; and

» reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the company’s legal edvisors.

Becouse of the inherent limitations of an oudit, there is @ risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with ¢ low or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instoncas of non-complionce. The risk is giso greater regarding
irregulorities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as froud involves intenticnal conceaiment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financio! Reporting
Council's website at www.freorquk/auditorsresponsibifities. This description forms port of cur auditer's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 1o the Academy Trust's members, as ¢ body, in cccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might stote to the Academy Trust's members
those matters we are required to stote to them in an aquditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by low, we do not accept or assume resgonsibility to onyone other than the Academy Trust and its members,
as o body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we hove formed.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(continued)

Juligh/Fownsend FCA FCCA (Senior Stotutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chortered Accountants

Birmingham

25 November 2024
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Perry Hall Muiti Academy Trust and the
Education & Skilis Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 September 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as inciuded in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 1o 2024, we have
carried out an engagement t¢ obtain limited assurance obout whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied fo the
purposes identified by Porlioment and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

This report is made solely to Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of cur engogement
letter. Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state to Perry Hall Multt Acaderny Trust and ESFA these maotters
we are reguired to stete in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other thon Perry Hell Multi Academy Trust ond ESFA, for our wark, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of Perry Hall Muiti Academuy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Perry Hall Multi Acodemy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of Stote for Education dated 28 June 2013 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
Septemnber 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parlioment and the finoncial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our prefession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtoin limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter ond the reguirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to cur attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in cil material respects, expenditure disbursed ond income received during the year 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financicl
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

we conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for Externot Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academny Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engogement letter.

The objective of o limited assuronce engagement is to perform such procedures os to obtgin information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriote evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited gssurance engagement is more limited in scope than o regsonable assuronce engagement and conseguently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant motters that might be identified
in o reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on o test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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Perry HMali Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Reguiarity to Perry Hail Multi Academy Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parlioment and the financicd transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Dains Audit Limited

Stotutory Audifor
Chartered Accountants

Birminghaom

Date: 25 November 2024
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)

for the year ended 31 August 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted fixed Total Total
funds funds asset funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital grants: 3
Transfer from local authority
on conversion - - - - 7,813,094
Other donations and copital
grants 157,894 25,932 803,669 987,495 2111884
Other troding activities 5 107,919 - - 107,919 74118
Investrments 6 44,949 - - 44,949 18,948
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy
trust's educctional operations - 22,151,402 - 22,151,402 20,198 520
Total income 310,762 22,177,334 803,669 23,291,765 30,216,564
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities 318,073 22,060,399 2,037,942 24,416,414 22025794
Total expenditure 318,073 22,060,399 2,037,942 24,416,414 22,025,794
Net (expenditure)/income (7,311 116,935 {1,234,273) (1,124,649) 8,190,770
Tronsfers between funds 18 - {790,063) 790,063 - -
Net movement in funds before
other recognised
gaoins/{losses) (7,311 (673,128) (444,210) (1,124,64%9) 8,190,770
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial goins on defined benefit
pension schemes 24 - 469,000 - 469,000 4,343,000
Pension surplus not recognised 24 - (262,000) - (262,000) (306,000)
Net movement in funds (7,311) {466,128) (444,210) (917,649) 12,227.770
Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 632,762 96,744 57,921,657 58,651,163 46423393
Net movement in funds (7,31 {466,128) (444,210) (917,649) 12,227,770
Total funds carried forward 625,451 (369,384) 57,477,447 57,733,514 58651163
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 08566185

Balance sheet
As at 31 August 2024

Note

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 14
Current assets
Debtors 15
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within cne year 16
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: cmounts falling due ofter more than

one year 17
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme iiability 24
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed osset funds 18
Restricted income funds 18
Pension reserve 18
Total restricted funds 18
Unrestricted income funds 18

Total funds

2024
£
57,216,596
865,231
2,739,346
3,604,577
(1,879,499)
1,725,078
58,941,474
(11,960)
56,929,514
(1,196,000)
57,733,514
57,477,447
826,616
(1,196,000}
57,108,063
625,451

57,733,514

2023
£
57.779.667
814,707
4,060,596
4,875,303
(2,159,858)
2,715,445
60,4952
(14,949)
60,480,163
(1,829,000
58,651,163
57,921,657
1,925,744
(1,829,000
58,018,401
632,762
58,651,163

The financial statements on pages 32 to 70 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 25 November

2024 and ore signed on thelr behaif, by:

J\'/

A Brocklehurst
Chair of Trustees
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of cash flows
for the yeor ended 31 August 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash ond cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year

Cosh and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 35 to 70 form part of these financlal statemants

Note

20

21

22,23

2024 2023

£ £
(695,197) 1535.200

(626,053) (218.646)
(1,321,250) 1,316,554
4,060,596 2,744,042
2,739,346 4,060,596
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Perry Holl Multi Academy Trust

(A compony limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policies

11

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accountingg policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, Is set out below,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academu Trust, which is o public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in occordance with the Financial Reporting Stendard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of reland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standord applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Geing concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate ie. whether there are any materiol
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy
Trust 1o continue as a going concern. The Trustees moke this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financiol statements and have concluded that the
Acadermy Trust has adequote resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern bosis of accounting in preporing the financial stotements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable ond the amount con be measurad reliably.

Grants

Grants are included iIn the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis, The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period Is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in crediters as
deferred income until the performonce-relcted conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the stotement of financial activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any obatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as ¢ liability.

Copital grants are recognised in full when there is an uncenditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the bolfance sheet In the restricted fixed asset fund. Capitai gronts
are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended

Donotions
Donations are recognised on o recelvobie basis (where there ore ne performonce-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured,
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarontee)

Notes to the financial stotements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

1.

Accounting policies (continved)

1.3

14

1.5

Income (continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and 1o the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

where assets and liabilities are received by the Academy Trust on conversion to an academy, the
tronsferred assets are measured at foir volue and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass 1o the Academy Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as a
transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Capital Grants’ to the net gssets recelved.

Transfer of existing academies into the Academy Trust

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Academy Trust, the
transferred assets ore measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet ot the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for
the transfer of an existing ocademy into the Academy Trust within ‘Income from Donations and Capital
Grants’ to the net assets acquired.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised oncea there is ¢ legal or constructive obligotion to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable thot a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired in settiement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is clossified by activity. The costs of each activity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking
eoch activity. Direct costs attributable 1o a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more than ane activity and support costs which are not atiributable to o single activity
are apportioned between those activities on a bosis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs
are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s
use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure Incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundroising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended ore inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable

Imterest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be meagsured rellably by
the Academy Trust: this is normoily upen notification of the interest pald or payable by the institution with
whom the funds are deposited.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company Emited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Taxation

The Acodemy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Parogroph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of o charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes,

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from toxation in respect of income or capital going
received within categories covered by Port 11, chopter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Toxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

1.7 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised os tangible fixed ossets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provigsion for impairment,
where tangible fixed assets have been acguired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and deprecioted over their
expected useful economic life. where there are specific conditions attached to the funding reguiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants ore credited to ¢ restricted fixed asset fund in the stotement
of financial cctivities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly 1o the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been ccquired with unrestricted funds, depreciotion on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction,
at rates colculoted to write off the cost of each asset on @ straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as
follows:
Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long Term Leasehold Land - Over the lease term

Long-term Lecsehold Property - 2% Straight line

Leasehold Improvements - 10% Straight fine

Furniture and fittings - 20% Straight line

Computer equipment - 33.3% Stroight fine

Motor vehicles - 20% Straight fine
A review for impairment of a fixed csset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate thot
the carrying vaive of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalis between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of finoncial activities.

1.8 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settfement amount ofter ony trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued ot the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Page 37



Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the fingnciol statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.9

110

11

112

113

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hond includes cash and short-term highly liquid Investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the dote of acquisition or apening of the deposit or simitar account.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the bolance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that o transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated relicbly. Liobilities ore recognised ot the amount thot the Academy Trust
anticipates it will poy to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligotion can be
estimatad reliobly.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligotion. Where the
effect of the time value of money is moterial, the provision is based on the presant value of those amounts,
discounted ot the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the fiability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payoble and similar charges.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial licbilities of the Academy Trust and their measuremeant bases are as follows:

Financlal assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at gmortised cost as detailed in note 15, Prepayments are not finoncial instruments. Amounts due
to the Academy Trust's whoily owned subsidiary are held at face volue less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic finoncial instrument and is meosured ot foce vaive.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals ond other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured ot amortised cost as detailed In notes 16 and 17, Taxation ond social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, os
the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than caosh
or angther financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at
face value less any impairment.

Leased assets

Rentols paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities on g straight line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the financial statements
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

114

115

Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Acodemy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS™). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculoted so s to spread the cost of pensions over
ermnployees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is ¢ substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionceble poyroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of guadrennicl valuctions using o prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying ossets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated os g defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS s o funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held seporately from those of the
Academy Trust in seporate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at foir value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methed and discounted at
a rate eguivalent o the current rate of return on a high quality corperate bend of equivalent term and
currency to the ligbilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and ore updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtaiiments. They are included os part of stoff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit licbility/asset is also recognised in the statement of
financial octivities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on
the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedictely in other recognised goins and osses.
Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable obiects of the Acodemy Trust of the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed osset funds are resources which are to be applled to specific capital purposes imposed by
the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Cepartrment for tducation Group.
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Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the finoncial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

2.

Critical accounting estimates and areos of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historica! experience and other factors,
including expectotions of future events that are believed to be reasongble under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes estimotes and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting occounting
estimates and assumptions will by definition, seldom equal the related acctugd results. The estimates and
assumptions thaot have a significant risk of causing o material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next finencial yeor are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that ore determined on an actuarial basis using o veriety of assumpticns. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
opproach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed ot 31 March 2022 has been
used by the actuory in valuing the pensions llability ot 31 August 2024. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the corrying amount of
the pension liability,

Critico! areas of judgment:

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed ossets are deprecioted over their useful lives toking into account residual volues where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residuc! volues are assessed annually and may very depending
on ¢ number of factors.

Local Government Pension Scheme

where the scheme is estimated to be in o surplus position, under the reporting provisions of FRS5102, the
acaderny trust is only able 1o recognise the surplus as to the extent that it is able to recover the surplus either
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. As the academy trust dees not
anticipate being able to recover the surplus in the oforementioned maonner, the surplus is not recognised on the
balance sheet, and corresponding adjustments is made within other recognised gains and losses on the
stotement of finoncial activities {as an acturial loss) to bring the net LGPS position of schemes which are in
surplus to £nil on the balance sheet.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

3 Donations and capital grants

Schoot conditions allocation

Devoived copital funding

Donations

Parent contributions to school visits

Total 2024

Transfer from Local Authorlty an conversion

School strategic improvement capital budget
grant

Scheol conditions allocotion
Deveolved capital funding

Capital grant from focal guthority
Dongtions

Parent contributions 1o schoaol visits

Total 2023

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£ £ £ £
- - 725,047 725,047
- - 78,622 78,622
15,022 25932 - 40,954
142872 - - 142,872
157,894 25932 803,669 987,495
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Toral
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
8,094 (267.000) 8,072,000 7.813,094
- - 845,301 845301
- - 735494 735494
- - 234843 234,843
- - 85,081 85,081
22,004 65,359 - 87,363
123,802 - 123802
153,900 (201,641 9,972,719 ©.924,978
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Perry Hail Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the fingncial statements
for the yeor ended 31 August 2024

4. funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities

Restricted Total
funds funds
2024 2024
£ £
Educational operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant {GAG) 15,871,974 15,971,974
Other DFE/ESFA grants
Universal free school meals 298,664 298,664
Pupil premium 1.675,438 1,675,438
Sports funding 170,261 170,261
Rates relief 3,360 3,360
Teachers' Pay and Teachers' Pension grants 424 740 424,740
Insurance funding 100,183 100,183
Supplementary grants and other 533548 533,548
Recovery premium 161,079 161,079

18,339,247 19,339,247
Cther Government grants

Contributions from other services 13624 13,624
Early years funding/SEN 1,912,349 1,912,349
Terrific for Twos funding 176,834 176,834
Pupil premium 33626 33,626

2,236,433 2,256,433
Other income from the Academuy Trust's educational operations 575,722 575,722

22151402 22,151,402

The academy trust recelved £NIL (2023 - £192,536) of funding for catch-up premium ond costs incurred in
respect of this funding totalled ENIL (2023 - £232,536). There is £NIL remaining amount (2023 - £NIL) ot the year
end.

Other income from the academy trust's educational operations comprise catering income, extended services
fees and contributions from other services.
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4, Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities (continued)

Restricted Totad
funds funds
2023 2023
£ £
Educational eperations
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual gront (GAG) 14,876,393 14,876,393
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Universal free school meals 307,819 307,819
Pupll premium 1,488,347 1,488,347
Sports funding 155,526 155,526
Rates relief 20,732 20,732
Teachers' Pay and Teachers’ Pension grants 35,859 35,859
Insurance funding 87,605 87,605
Supplementary grants 422,306 422,306
National tutoring programme 74,229 74,229

17,468,816 17,468,816
Other Government grants

Contributions from other services 257506 257506
Early years funding/SEN 1,562,657 1562,657
Terrific for Twos funding 112,293 112,293
Pupil premium 76,972 76,972
2,009,428 2,009,428
Other income from the Academy Trust's educational operations 527,740 527,740
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium 192,536 192,536

20,198,520 20,198,520
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5. Other trading activities

Hire of facilities

Hire of facilities

6. Investment income

Bank interest

Bank interest

Unrestricted
funds

2024

£

07,919

Unrestricted
funds

2023

£

74118

Unrestricted
funds

2024

£

44,949

Unrestricted
funds

2023

£

18,948

Total
funds
2024

107,919

Total
funds
2023

74118

Total
funds
2024

44,949

Total
funds
2023

18,948
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(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes t¢ the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

7. Expenditure

Educational operations:

Direct costs

Allocated support Costs

Toial 2024

Educational operations:

Birect costs

Allocated support Costs

Totol 2023

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £
10,379,277 1836687 1,500,5M 13,716,475
6,956,763 111,027 2,632,149 10,699,939
17,336,040 2947714 4132660 24,416,414
Staff Costs Premises QOther Total
2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £

9,720,921 1,553,375 1,505,596 12,779,892
5.868,026 1,009,139 2,568,757 $,245902
15,588,947 2,562,514 3,874,333 22,025,794
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8 Analysis of expenditure by octivities

Funding for educational eperations

Funding for educational cperations

Direct costs
2024
£

13,716,475

Direct costs
2023
£

12,779.892

Support
costs
2024

£

10,699,939

Support costs
2023
£

9,245,902

Total
funds
2024

24,416,414

Total
funds
2023

22,025,794
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8.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

LGPS costs

Stoff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies

Siaff development

Technology costs

Educationat consultancy ond staff agency costs
Travel and subsistence

Other direct costs

Recruitment and support

Total 2024

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £

65,000 231,000
9,716,491 8975133
1,836,687 1,525,176
405,475 403,133
99,513 103,346
18,968 23,876
1,075,062 1,085,857
231,137 155,003
250,966 255133
17176 22,235
13,716,475 12,779,892
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Travel and subsistence
Maintenance of premises
Technology costs
Maintenance of equipment
Cleaning

Rates

Water rates

Energy

Insurance

Catering costs
Governance ond professional costs

Other support costs

Total 2024

9. Net (expenditure)/income

Net (expenditure)/income for the year includes:

Opercating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit

- other services

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £
6,956,763 5,868,026
201,255 202,856
103,707 82,015
143,008 167,038
507,370 254225
107,867 114,018
427,354 323,832
20,051 41,894
59,871 74,919
380,258 364,051
80,485 70,000
959,619 860,738
252,248 282851
500,083 539,439
10,699,939 9,245,902
2024 2023

£ £

22,49 28,151
2,037,942 1,728,032
31,500 29,365
18,500 17.950
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10.

Staff

a. $taff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Cther employee benefits

Agency staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Stoff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

b. Severance payments

The Academy Trust paid 2 severance payments in the year (2023 -2), disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000

c. Special stoff severance payrments

2024 2023
£ £
12,878,751 11,245,344
1,241,395 1,058,480
2,553,108 2,539,335
38,521 31,525
16,714,775 14,874,684
613,761 699,863
10,504 14,400
17,336,040 15,588,947
2024 2023
£ £
10,504 14,400
10,504 14,400
2024 2023
No. No.
2 2

Included in stoff restructuring costs are special severence poyments totaling £4,652 (2023 - £14400).

individually, the payments were: £4,652 (2023 - £3,150 and £11,250).
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10.

Staff {(continued)
d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers and teaching assistants 325 334
Administration and support 162 123
Management 14 14
501 471

2. Higher paid stoff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

Was!
2024
No.
in the band £60,001 - £70,000 1t
In the bond £70,001 - £80,000 4
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 3
In the band £150,001 - £160,000 -

In the band £176,001 - £180,000 1

f. Key management personned

2023
No.

n

The key manogement personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the executive leadership team
as listed on poge 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and

employer national insurance contributions) received by key manogement personnel for their services to the

Academy Trust was £1,647,738 (2023 - £1,386,746).
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Notes to the finoncial statements
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11 Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Human resources

. Finance and administration services

. Daota services

. Early years consultancy

. Chief Executive Officer and leadership support
. Educational psychologist support

. Facility and estate services

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

Salary charges are split equolly between the 10 ccademies other than the educational psychologist costs.
Educational psychologist costs only relate to Perry Hall Primary School, Berrybrook Primary School and Dunstoll
Hill Primary School, therefore are split between just these 3 academies. The remaining costs are split equally
between all 10 academies. Tillington Manor Primary School's costs are prorated ofter joining the trust during the
prior year. The central charge is slightly lower for Masty Croft os the new Education Welfare Officer works across
9 schools with Mesty Croft continuing to source in direct support.

The actua! omounss charged during the year were as foliows:

2024 2023

£ £

Perry Hall Primary School 121,263 100,792
Berrybrook Primary Schocl 121,263 100,792
Dunstall Hili Primary School 121,263 166,792
Bird's Bush Primary School 102,562 85,640
woodthorne Primary School 102,562 85,640
Stanley Rood Primary Schocl 102,562 85,640
Forest Hills Primary School 102,562 85,640
Mesty Croft Primary School 101,653 85,640
Sledmere Primary School 102,562 85,640
Tillingten Maoneor Primary School 102,562 34,408
Total 1,080,814 850,624
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12.

13.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or hos received other benefits from an emplogyment with the
Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The value of
Trustees' remuneration ond other benefits was as follows:

2024 2023

£000's £0C0's

A K Cheema Remuneration 170 - 175 155 -160
Pension contributions paid 40 - 45 35 - 40

During the year ended 31 August 2024, one trustee received £1,098 benefit in kind (2023 - £1,098).

Curing the year ended 31 August 2024, expenses totalling £63 were reimbursed or paid directly to 1 Trustee
(2023 - £64).

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

in accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on accedemy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2024 was
£73347 (2023 - £54,446) The cost of this insurance 15 includad in the total insurance cost,
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14. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2023
Additions

At 31 August 2024

Depreciation
At 1 September 2023
Charge for the yeor

At 31 August 2024

Net bock value

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

Freehold and

long term
leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehoid and Computer Motor
buildings improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
56,471,747 8,285,624 1,564,617 679,005 6,500 67,015,493
- 1,365,032 20,626 89,013 - 1,474,671
56,477,147 9,650,656 1,585,243 768,018 6,500 68,488,164
4,857,802 2,729,379 1,021,825 621,787 3,033 9,233,826
982,504 853,783 147,350 52,605 1,300 2,037,942
5,840,706 3,583,162 1,169,175 674,392 4,333 11,271,768
50,637,041 6,067,494 416,068 93,626 2,167 57,216,396
51,619,945 5,556,245 542,792 57.218 3467

57,779,667

Included within freehold and long term leasehold land and buildings is freehold land and buildings of £3,717,000
(2023 - £3,717,000). Freehold iond of £980,000 (2023 - £980,000) is not depreciated.
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15.

16,

Debtors

Due within one year
Trade debtors
Prepoyments and accrued income

Tax recoverable

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Cther leans

Salix and CIF loan

Trade creditors

Cther taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruais ond deferred income

Deferred income ot 1 September 2023
Resources deferred during the year

Amounts released from previous periods

2024 2023
£ £
16,626 13,875
604,603 566,098
244,002 234,734
865,231 814,707
2024 2023
£ £
8,287 8287
2,989 89,265
330,752 202,749
259,980 251428
225,927 185,943
1,051,564 1422186
1,879,499 2,159,858
2024 2023
£ £
234,748 214251
236,736 234 748
(234,748) (214,257
236,736 234,748

At the balance sheet date the Acodemy was holding Universa! infant Free School Medl funding received in
advance of the ccademic year 2024/25 as well os unspent National Tutoring Programme ond Sports funding.
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17. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Salix and CIF loan

2024
£

1,960

2023
£

14,949

Salix ond CIF loans relate to interest free loans from the ESFA. These loans are repayable in monthly instalments

by 2029.
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18. Statement of funds

Bolonce at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2023 Income  Expenditure infout  (Losses) August 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General Funds 632,762 310,762 {318,073) - - 625,451
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 1,925,744 15,971,974 (15,556,867) (1,514,235) - 826,616
Pupil Premium . 1,675,438 {1,675,438) - - -
Other DFE/ESFA grants - 1,691,835 (1,691,835) - - -
Other funding . 2,619,827 (2,619,827) - - -
Catering - 218,260 (942,432) 724,172 - -
Pension reserve (1,829,000) - 426,000 - 207,000 {1,196,000)
96,744 22,177,334 (22,060,399) {790,063y 207,000 (369,384)
Restricted fixed asset
funds
DfE group capital grants 5,613,964 803,669 (549,096) 790,063 - 6,658,600
Assets inherited on
conversion ond transfer 51,663,573 - (L,013,092) - - 50,650,481
Assets funded from
restricted general funds 567,145 - (467.246) - - 99,899
Capitol government grant 76,975 - (8,508) - - 68,467
57,921,657 803,669 (2,037,942) 790,063 - 57,477,447
Total Restricted funds 58,018,401 22,981,003 (24,098,341) - 207,000 57,108,063
Total funds 58,651,163 23,291,765 (24,416,414) - 207,000 57,733,514
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18. Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects
of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the trustees, Unrestricted funds will be deployed primarily on
appropriate staffing and leodership structures across the Academy Trust to ensure that pupil achievement is
enhanced.

Restricted general funds

This fund represents grants and other income received for the Academy Trust's operational activities and
development

Pension reserve

The pension reserve included within restricted general funds represents the Academy Trust's share of the
pension liability arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds
This fund represents grants and other income received to carry cut works of ¢ capital nature.
Transfers between funds

Transfers between funds relate to purchoses of o capital noture and catering expenditure being funded by GAG.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to ¢ fimit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2024
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Bolonce at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General Funds 631,215 24639656 {245 419} - - 632,762
Restricted general
funds
Genergl Annuat Grant 1783117 14,876,393 (13,842,830 (890,935 - 1,625,744
Pupil Premium - 1,488,347 (1,488,347) - - -
Other DFE/ESFA grants 236,003 1,104,076 (1,340,079 - - -
Other funding 22,242 2611925 (2,634,167 - - -
Catering - 183,138 {552,919 369,781 - -
Pension reserve (5,405,000 (267,000} (194,000) - 4037000 (1,829,000)
(3,363,638) 19,996,879 (20,052,343 {521154) 4037000 96,744
Reastricted fixed asset
funds
DfE group caopital grants 39057158 1,815,638 (627986 521154 - 5,613,964
Assets inherited on
conversion and transfer 44 470,440 8.072.000 {878,867 - - 51,663,573
Asgsets funded from
restricted general funds 780,218 - {(213,073) - - 567145
Capital government grant - 85,081 (8,106) - - 76,975
49,155,816 9,972,719 (1,728,032 521154 - 57,921,657
Total Restricted funds 45792178 29,969,598 (21,780,375) - 4,037,000 58,018,401
Total funds 46,423,393 30,216,564 {22,025794) - 4037000 58,651,163
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allccated as follows:

Perry Hall Primary School
Berrybrook Primary School
Dunstall Hilk Primary Schocl
Bird's Bush Primary Schogl
woodthorne Primary Scheol
Staniey Road Primary Schoo!
Forest Hills Primary School
Mesty Croft Primary School
Sledmere Primary School
Tillington Manor Primary Scheol

Multi-Academy Trust

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve
Restricted fixed asset fund

Pension reserve

Total

The following academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as foliows:

Bird's Bush Primary School
Stanley Road Primary School
Forest Hilis Primary School

Titlington Manor Primary School

2024 2023

£ £

128,758 98,660
1,868 122,713
1,967,338 1,737,032

(481,858) (238.098)
101,009 146,385

(525,028) (222,816)

{65,685) (77,895)
83,413 738,883
322,99 228,564
(133,235) 20,389
52,496 4,689
1,452,067 2,558,506
57,477,447 57921657

(1,196,000) (1,829,000)
57,733,514 58,651,163
Deficit

£

{4B81,858)

{525,028)

{65,685)

(133,235)
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18,

Statement of funds (continved)
Certain schools within the Trust had a continued reduction of intake numbers and needed to use our resources

more effectively.  As such, consultations took place during Autumn term 1o reduce for PAN for Bird's Bush
Primary in Staffordshire from 45 to 30 and Stanley Reood Primary School in Worcestershire from 60 to 45.

Wwe are mindful of falling numbers on roll elsewhere and planning for these reductions remains a key planning
focus.

The year has been set against a chollenging financic! landscape with increased staff costs (from pay increases
and cover costs for staff absences) coupled with cost increases passed on by meny suppliers. Recruitment into

many roles has also continued to be a challenge.

However, we have adapted our plans accordingly to ensure we mitigate expenditure pressures where possible.

The Academy Trust is toking the following action to return the academies to surplus:

The academies in deficit are referred 10 as our focus schools and the Trust s taking the following actions as
part of deficit recovery plonning to return these academies to surplus:

. Reduction in PAN at Birds Bush and Stanley Road

. Review of staffing structures (current and future) at each establishment

. Review and adoptation of working patterns

. Sharing of key staff where appropriate

. Detailed review of all expenditure commaodities to provide savings where possible

. With increcsed SEND requirement, dialogue with each local gutherity to ensure reconciliation and timely

receipt of all additiong! funding opportunities
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and

educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff Educationat excluding Totai
costs costs supplies depreciation 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Perry Hail Primary School 1,194,002 613,582 50,256 490,119 2,647,959
Berrybrook Primary School 679,308 567,703 33,855 372417 1,653,083
Dunstall Hill Primary Scheol 1,483,085 657,236 83,869 574,259 2,798,449
Bird's Bush Primary School 587,739 375129 36,393 371,794 1,377,055
Woodtharne Primary School 1,186,492 544 651 47530 611,703 2,390,376
Stanley Road Primary School 892,845 628,841 17,247 426,884 1,965,817
Forest Hills Primary Scheel 354,216 207286 12,708 209,713 783,923
Mesty Croft Primary School 1,243,998 849,323 37,345 421,338 2,552,004
Sledmere Primary Schoot 1,831,438 1,045,003 58,679 611182 3,546,302
Tilington Manor Primary School 642,371 482,627 25,895 405,486 1,566,379
Multi-Academy Trust 283,983 685,382 1,698 136,062 1,107,125
Academy Trust 10,379,277 6,956,763 405,475 4,636,957 22,378,472
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparotive information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Perry Hall Primory Schoot
Berrybrook Primaery Schoaol
Dunstall Hill Primary Scheol
Bird's Bush Primary School
Waodthorne Primary School
Staniey Road Primary School
Forest Hills Primary School
Mesty Croft Primary School
Sledmere Primary School

Tillingten Manor Primary School
{5 months)

Multi-Academy Trust

Academy Trust

Teaching ond

educational Other costs
support staff Other support  Educational excluding Totat
costs staff costs supplies  depreciction 2023
£ £ £ £ £
1159860 844179 44733 506,479 2,555,251
£46,334 505177 40,254 373,94 1,565,686
1433,680 572547 48,430 510,991 2,565,648
507,773 34580 26,428 349,928 1,229,930
1,069,947 479578 56,289 553878 2,159,692
898,188 519,443 33,496 371,214 1822341
353,562 204,673 22,855 219,371 800,461
1,036,738 773,091 50,435 393,667 2,253931
2,089,544 909,026 73,797 711,280 3,783,649
266,080 195,758 5894 161,068 628800
259,213 518,753 522 153,885 932373
9,720,521 5,868,026 403,133 4,505,682 20,297,762

Page 62



Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financigl statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

19.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Anclusis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 57,216,396 57,216,396
Current assets 625,451 2,703,126 276,000 3,604,577
Creditors due within one year - (1,876,510) (2.5989) (1,879,499)
Creditors due in more than one year - - (11,960) (11,960)
Provisions for liabifities and charges - (1,196,000} - (1,196,000)
Total 625,451 (369,384) 57477447 87,733,514

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed ossets - - 57,779,667 57,779,667
Current assets 632,762 3,996,337 246,204 4875303
Creditors due within one year - {2,07G,593) (89.265) {2.159,858)
Creditors due in more than ane year - - (14,949) (14,949)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1829000} - (1,829,000)
632,762 96,744 57,921,657 58,651,163

Total
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20.

21.

22.

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expenditure)/income for the period (as per statemeant of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation Inherited
{Increase)/Decrease in debtors
Increase/{Decrease) in creditors

LGPS adjustments

Fixed assets tranferrad on conversion/from existing academies

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, intergst and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capitat grants from DfE ond other copital income

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand ond ot bank

2024 2023
£ £
(1,124,649) 8190770
2,037,942 1,728,032
(803,669) (1900,719)
(44,949) (18.948)
. 267.000
(50,524) 468,195
(283,348) 678,870
(426,000) 194,000
- (8,072.000)
(695,197) 1,535,200
2024 2023
£ £
44,949 18,948
(1,474,671) (2,138,313)
803,669 1,900,719
(626,053) (218,646)
2024 2023
£ £
4,060,596

2,739,346
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23, Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September At 31 August
2023 Cash flows 2024
£ £ £
Cash at bonk and in hand 4,060,596 (1,321,250) 2,739,346
Debt due within 1 year {(97,552) 86,276 (1,276)
Debt due after 1year (14,949) 2,989 (11,960}
3,948,095 {1,231,985) 2.6, 10

24,

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employess belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teochers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Midlands, Worcestershire County Council and Staffordshire
County Council Pension Funds. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The iatest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2020 ond of the LGPS 31 March
2022,

Contributicns amounting to £225,927 were payabie to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £185,943) and are
Included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teochers' Pension Scheme Requiations 2014, Membership is cutomatic for full-time teachers in academies. Al
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS {cllowing enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.
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24,

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 20714 published by
HM Treosury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriotely and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was corried cut as at 31 March 2020, The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by
HMT, applying o notional investment return based on 1.7% abcve the rate of CPlL The key elements of the
vaoluation cuicome are:

. emplouer contribution rates set at 28% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). This is
an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change In member
benefits Is needed.

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimoted cost of future benefits) for
service 1o the effective date of £262,000 million and noticnal assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £39,800 million

The next voluation result is due 1o be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 Aprit 2028

The employer’s pension costs paid 1o TPS in the year amounted to £1,745,000 (2023 - £1,496,000).

A copy of the valugtion report and supporting documentation s on the Teachers' Pensions website
(httos://www.leacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2015/04 /teachers-pensions-vaiugtion-report aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust is unabie to identify its share of the underlying assets and liobilities of the plan. Accordingly, the Academy
Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS1GZ and has accounted for its contributions 1o the scheme as
if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information avallable on the
scheme.

Loacal Government Pensionh Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,521000 (2023 - £1,251,000). of
which employer’s contributions totalled £1,245,000 (2023 - £1,025,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £
276,000 (2023 - £226,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.3 - 27.2 per cent for employers
and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, ot the request of the Secretary of State for Education, 1o a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Deportment for
Education. The guarantee came inte force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education
reaffirmed its committment to the guarantes, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV UK,
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24,

Pension commitments {continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salories

Rate of increcse for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liablities

2024
%

3.55
2.65
5.00

2023
%

385
2.96
521

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future Improvements in mortality rates. The

cssumed life expectations on retirement cge 65 are:

Retiring todoy
Males

Fermales

Retiring in 20 years
Maies

Fermales

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rote -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 yeor increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPlrate +01%

CPlI rate -0.1%

2024 2023
Years Yeaors
203 206
235 256
20.6 208
24.5 245
2024 2023
£000 £000
{318) (2813
318 281
505 422
(505) (421}
313 256
(313) (255)
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24,

Pension commitments (continued)
Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other bonds

Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,001,000 (2023 - £24,000).

The omounts recognised in the Stotement of financial aetivities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financiol activities

At 31 August

At 31 August

2024 2023
£ £
6,656,000 6,543,000
897,000 700,000
668,000 326,000
3,776,000 1942.000
- 93,000
11,997,000 9,604,000
2024 2023

£ £
(754,000) (986,000)
536,000 372,000
(601,000) (603,000)
(819,000)  (1,217,000)

Page 68



Perry Hall Multi Academy Trust

{A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the yeor ended 31 August 2024

24. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the definec benefit obligations were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 11,128,000 13,365,000
Conversion of ccademy trusts - 758,000
Current service cost 754,000 986,000
Interest cost 601,000 603,000
Employee contributions 276,000 226,000
Actuarial gains (4.000) (4,715,000}
Benefits paid (130,000) (95,0003
At 31 August 12,625,000 11,128,000
Changes in the foir vaive of the Academy Trust's shore of scheme ossets were as foillows:
2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 9,605,000 7,960,000
Conversion of academy trusis - 491,000
Interest income 536,000 372,000
Actuarial gains/flosses) 465,000 (372,000}
Employer contributions 1,245,000 1,025,000
Employee contributions 276,000 226,000
Benefits poid (130,000) (85,000
Administration expenses - (2,000

At 31 August 11,997,000 9.605,000
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25,

26,

27.

2024 2023

£ £

Present value of pensicn liabilities (12,625,000} (11128,000)
Foir volue of scheme assets 11,997,000 9,605,000
Pension surplus not recognised* {568,000} (308,000)
(1,829,000

Net pension scheme deficit (1,196,000}

As the LGPS surplus is irrecovercble, for schemes in @ surplus position at the year end, recognition on the
balance sheet has been restricted to £€nil. The in-year adjustment of £262,000 (2023 - £306k) hos been offset

against the overoll acturial goin for the year.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the Academy Trust hod commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

canceliable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Not later then 1 yecr 117,323 22,491
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 23,380 15,973
140,703 38,464

Members’ liability

Each member of the choritable company undertokes to contribute to the assets of the compony in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is o member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be @

member.

Related poarty transactions

No related porty transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’ remuneration and

expenses already disclosed in note 12,
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